United Nations ~ Nations Unies symsmzcm
ECONOMIC CONSEIL E/AC.25/SR. 14

27 ApriY 1948

AND ECONOMIQUE =ncures
SOCIAL COUNCIL.  ET SOCIAL ORTGTNAL: FRENCE

AD HCC COMMIWwwEE ON GENOCIDE
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FOURTEENTE MEETING

Lake Buccess, New York
Wednesday, 21 April 1948, at 2.15 p.m.

Cheirmen: Mr, MAKTOS imited States of Americs
Vice~Chalrman: Mr. MOROZOV Unicn of Soviet Socialist
: Republice
Rapporteur: Mr. AZKOUL Lebanon
Present: Mr. LIN MOUSHENG China
Mx. ORDONNEAU France
Mr. BUDZINSKIL _ Poland -
Mr. PEREZ-PEROZO Venezuela
Secretariat: Mr. SCHWELB Deputy Director of the Human
Rights Divieion
Mr,  GIRAUD Secretary of the Committee

NOTE: Any corrections of this rocord should be submitted in
writing, in either of the working languages (English or French),
and within twenty-four hoyrs, to Mr, E. Delavenay, Director, Officlal -
Records Diwvision, Room CC-119, Lake Success. Corrections should be.
‘accompanied by or ilncorporated in a letter, on headsd notepaper,
bearing.the appropriate symbol number and enclosed in an envelope
marked "Urgent'. Corrections can be dealt with more spesedily by the
gorvices ccncerned if delegations will be good enough also to -
incorporate them ln o mimeographed copy of the record. . _;,;

LR LI 2 B S T T R



B/AC.25/6R. 14
Page 2 ¥

PREPARATION OF A DRAYFY CONVENULON ON GENOOUTNR:  CORCINISEION OF-
THE DISCUSSION

Article II (Cultural Genocide)

Thé?CHAIRMAN requested the memburs of the Commilies o
cbnsider the definitlon of what it had been agreed to term culbural
genocide, Item 3 of the draft of Article I submitted by the Chinese
delegation (document E/AC.25/9) would be used as & busis ol discusslon.
A pgeparate article however would be assigned to the subject of culiurel

© genocide,

Mr. MOROZOYV (Union of Soviet Socialist Eepublics) considersd
‘ that ﬁhe decision to assign a sep..ate article to culturzl genccide
had been’iﬁvaiidatsd by the‘adopticn of the.Chineaa delepationts
. draft‘és a working document, since that document correctly prouped
the‘dafinitions of the different forms of genocide in a single article.
Morsover Mr. Morozov thought it preferable that all forms of genccide

should be enumerated in a single article.

The CHAIRMAN was apprehensive that that formuls would
constitute one further obstacle to the mdoption of the convention,

since meny governments were opposed to the notion of culﬁﬁy&l genooids,

Mr. LIN MOUSHENG (China) concurred in thé USSR repregen-
tative’skviéws, The inclusiocn of cultural genccide in article I
would not entail any change in ths introductory part, which had
alrsady been adopted by the Committee, as in that part genoclde
was defined as a criminal act directed againstva group with the
purpose of destréying it, and not as the destruction of‘the "physical
existence" of that group. Moreover, as the Labaneéé rapresent&tive
haqvVery trﬁly 6béerved, the destruction of d grduﬁ did not neceesarily

“/involve



B/AC.25/SR. 1k
Page 3

invalve the destruction of the individuals who composed it.

Mr. PER¥Z-PEROZO (Venezuela) also thought that‘all ‘the
acts considered az comprising the concept of genocide should be

included in a single article,

Mr. #2zKOUL (Lebanon), Rapporteur, suggested as a compromiée
that article I should be composed as follows: the introductory
part would be drafted in general terms, as at present; whils the
rest of the article would be divided into two sections, the first
comprising the acts constituting physical .genocide, the second
consisting of culbtural senocide. With regard to the latter, the
Comittee would draw up an &numwratioq gimilar to that contained in ‘
items 1, 2, 3 and 4, which had elrsady been adopted. These would

together form Section I.

Mr. ORDONNEAU (France) suggested that in order to‘expedite‘
its work the Committee should first define cultural genocide‘and
subsequently should declde wherw the definition should be insérted;

Whatever decision the Ctemlttee might reach‘on thé latter point,
-~ however, the Frbnch delegation would oppose the inclusion of any
definition of cultural ganOoide in the proposed convention Indeed,
while acknowledging that acts aimed at the destruction of the
culture, the language or the faith'of atgroup should be‘anticipated 
and suppressed, it considered that the gquesticn deserved'more thofough :
sxamination and reserved the right to gubmit 1ts objections again

in the Hconomic and uocial COunCil and even, 1f necessery, in ‘the “Q *“” 

General Assambly.

M. RUDZINSKI (Poland) pointed out that the conven’oion
/which




B/AC.25/5R. 1L

Page U4 '

which the Committee was directed to draw up was nobl reguired to
deteormine the pemalties to be imposed on persons pullty of genoclds,
bubt to define the different aspects of the orime which should be
suppressed. It was thus importent to recognize that genccide was e
erima resulting from persecution directed ngainst & group, and that
it could assume & physical charactsr and & culbural character. To
draw thet distinction was not to place the twe forms of the orime on
an equality;‘the Tact that the acts of gencclde were pleced In
geparate paragrephs should suffice to allay the fears of certain

representatives.

The CHATRMAN ruled that the formal decision, taken by
‘ ;meanS‘Qf & VOte, to give a separate articls to cultural penccide,
.‘shDQId not be reconsidered. He opened the discussion on the substance

of the matter.

M. RUDZINSKI (Poland) suggested that item 3 of the draft
article submitﬁed by the USSR delegation should be token as a basls
- (see document E/AC.25/SR.12), Tt could then be decided whet acte
shQuld be included in the category of cultural genccids before

att@mpting,to egtablish & general definition of the crims.

Mr. LIN MOUSHENG (China) stated that he {m propered to
accept the USSR formula as a basis of discussion. ¥He suggested
however the following simpler wording: “Prohibiting the use of
~the lgnguage and déﬂtroying systematically end by violence the
-librarieél museums, achools, historical monuments, places of worship

or other cultural institutions and obJects, of the group.”

The CHATRMAN asked the Committee for e decision as to

/whether



B/AC.25/SR. 14
Page 5

whether the text proposed by the USSR representative should be taken

a8 the bagls of discussion.

The Ccmmittes decided in favour by & votes, with 1 abstention.

Mr. PEREZ-PEROZO (Venezusla) observed that the toxt 6f
the USSR dslegalion and the amendment submitted by the Chinese
delsgation both failed to cover the same point: they referred only
to the destruction of libraries and other public monuments, and made
no mention of the prohibition of the use of those institutions,
Generally speaking, moreover, any enumeration was liable to contain
omissions. Hence the delegation cf Venezuela would prefer th? following'»
wording: "Preventing or rostricting the licit use of its owm l&nguage ‘
in daily intercourss, in education and puolications, and destroying |
cultural and religious means and obJjects, or hindering the use
thereof;". |
Mr. Perez-Perozo pointed out that his reason for using the
word "lawful" hed been that & Govermment might conceivably Torbid
teaching to be caryled on in a language‘other than that of the

country, without having any intention of committing genocide.

Mr. MOROZGV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republiﬁs).stated 
that since there would be a separate article dsaling with cultural
genoclids, that article’shouldfbe preceded by‘a general definition{
which might read as follows: "Genoclde means any measures and any
actions directed against the usa‘of thefﬁafional language'or‘againét_
the national oulture.f H

Following that introauotlon, Mr. Morozov prOpossd that the

Committes should insert paragraph 3 of uhe draft artiule T submltted i

/by the UssR



E/AC,25/SR. 1k
Page 6

by the USSR delegation at the twelfth meeting.

Mr. ORDONNEAU (France) pointed out that if that text were
"

adopted, it would be edviseable to say: "Genocide also means ...,

| gince thers was also an Article I defining genocide.

The CHATRMAN asked the members of the Committee for their

views on the amendment submitted by the representative of Venezuela.

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republlcs) thought
1t would be unnecessary to speak of the "licit" use of language, in
~view of the fact that the Convention would state clearly that genocide

; ﬁeaﬁtlonly,acts prompted by an intention to perasecute.

| Mr. PEREZ-PEROZO (Venezuela) acknowledged the justice of
ﬁhe remafk‘and statgd’that he would not press for the maintensnce of
the word "licit". He upheld, however, the last part of his amendment,
aécordihg to which the prohibition of the use of culﬁural institutions
migh%s constitute genocide equally with the destruction of those

institutions.

At the suggestion of the CHAIRMAN, Mr. MOROZOV (Union of
Soviet Socialist Republics) agreed to the Tormula "hindering the

use. thereof".

 Mr. LIK MQUSHENG (China) proposed the fdllowinglwording,
' vhich wes baSedkon the text of the USSR delegation, but also took
"iﬁto'cdnéideration the obéervations submitted by other delegations-

| "In this convention, gonocide also means any of the following
l delibbrate acts commltted with the 1ntentlon of destroylng the
 1an5uage and culthb of a natlon, racial or religious Group on grounds

Jof national



E/AC.25/SR. 1%
Page 7

of nwabiowal or racial origli or religious belief:

(1) prohibiting the use of the language of the group tu private -
intercourse, in schools and in publicatlons;

(2) destroying, or prevemting the use of, libraries, museums,
schools, historical monuments, places of worship or other cultural

institutions and cobjects of the group."

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Soclalist Republios) said
that the new text appeared to him acceptable. He thought, however,
that it would be preferable to use his delegation's formula concerning
the printing and distribution of books and publications, which Wasa.‘
more éomprehensive. The expression "in private interd:ﬁrse" ﬁas in
"~ hie oﬁinion 8180 much too narrow, and should be replaced by "in

private and public life".

Mr. LIN MOUSHENG (China) suggested the feplacement of the )
exprossion "private intercourse" by "daily intercourse"."He‘ﬁqintsd'
out that books and other printed works wera compr;sed in the éxpfoséioﬁs
"publicaticna” and "cultural objecté". Tt appeared to him more logical
%o place acta relating to the usge of language in a‘sepérate paragraph; |
nence he preferred his drafting to the enumeration contained in the

third paragraph of the USSR text.

Mr. ORDONNEAU (France) atated that hie delegation attached

grset importence to the concept of cultural genocide, end regarded ’

ag sssential the protection of uhe ouluural Jlfe of groups Haverthelesg

it considered that the ﬁa+ter could not be settled as eaeily ag was

degired by :aome members’or ths Commmutse. Ona of the mosb dellcate

agpects of the questidn of‘gehooide waslthat it raised the general

/problem i




B/AC, 35/,aR 1k
Page 8

problem of the rights of the State with respect to minority groups
and the rights of minority groups with respect to the State. The

.French delegation-had nnhesitatingly declarsd 1tself in favour of

. ftha adoption of a oonvention on physical genoclde dealing with such
“Serous crimes as murder and assassination; its attitude was more
reaerved wn&ra actlons which were not necessarily criminal were

'concarneé,'




E/AC.25/SR. 14
Page 9

Mr. Ovdovpean poinmad ouh blat score of the acts which 1t was

O FER= I S 2a. LY - . 5
propedsd toodnelude in bl cousepl ol onltural genseide wmight have

a lawful Tasis; fu

Y

»oexampls, currenth leglelalicon ackuowledged the

right off Statss o mpose certalin restrictiuns n the ume of the

national lensuags of wminerlty groups living in their tefritory(

The Conmittes ghould avold stating the problem of genocide in
such a way as o Incriminate States oxercising their powers in a

normal way. FProvisiong of the nature of those that had been pro-

3 -

foscaﬁ Tzr from cnsuring the protectlon of natimnal groups, wculd
run the rigk of aggravating tlie conrlict between those groups ané
the State.

Tho French delogaticn weuld advoeste procceding with great
sgapticon.,  In its view the question related to the probiqm oI the
protoction of the rights of mincritics, which Lad been entrusted
‘to the Sub-Commisglion on The Prevention of Discrinination and the

CProtoction of Mincritics. It would be unwise for the Committes to

 _adopt provigions vhich would prejudice the definition of numan
‘frccd;m included in the Declaration of Human Rights, without oon-
sulting the othorfuamputont oygens of the United Nations. :
The French dolegation would thufti&fu vote against the inclusion
" of article IT; not on principle but bocauso it fearcd that the aim‘
*fi would not to achicyudn&nd tLat its wider and moré comprohensive con-

Cocoption of cultural gonc cocide weuld thus bo compromiscc

Mr. KUDZINSKI (Pclend) gald that the purposc of the pfopoéceL‘
 convention Was not to interfore with the ndtural cvoluﬁion of" humanity,
‘” or the incvite Biu ubéorptich f‘cértain 11nor1uy Lruupa ;nto thﬁb
" natidnal whole, ?uc rathcr n; prcvcnt the VlOlUnuu, pcrsccut1ons_“nd

+

“pxecgscs which arouscd the consclciico of mankind;

/Mr. ORDOMNEAU




E/AC.:" [SR.14
Page 10
Mz, ORICANEAU (Fruncc) wholly cercod on the aln of the

convention, ag defincd by the rupresentetive or Peland.,  He wishod
to wake cleer that nis Government had tokon the vicw that it was
better to. adopt g waiting attituds in regard to the conventicn on
culturel ginccide, because it feared the grave dangers thed might
regult frcm}tco broad sn interpretation of the provisicneg of the
conventicn., TFrence 4id nct sppose the suppression o cultbural
genoclde; she wos ready to co-vperate with the Comalisuicn on Human
,Rights and'fhe ﬁub~00mmisuian cﬁ the Preventicon of Digcrimination

“aﬁditge Protecticn of Minmrities whon they considered the problen,
Iiﬁ wa; bnly‘after the quostion of cultural gencelde had buen thor-
oughly studied, howsver, that an.international convention on the

‘subject ghould be drawm up.

Spéaking as the ropresentative o the Lnlted Htates of
Mmerica, the CHATEMAN sald that‘h; ghared the opindion of the rep-
resentative of France that the problew of cultural genocide was
linked with thot of the protsction of mincrities,

Thoge wh$ advocatcd the Inglusicn of cultural genoclde din the
@onvuntion‘dufincdlit og inbur alis the prokibition of the uso of
lenguage, syetematic destruction o books, and dustrucfi@n or digpsr-
sion of dcoumenty wnd obJects of historioul or artigtic velue, The
United States Govormment thcught that cultural gepocide should not

‘be indludad in the cunvention., The declsion to make genoclde a
ngw_iﬁternaticgal,cfime wag extremely sericvus, and the United States

‘ bcliéved thot the &rimé,aheuld be Limlted b&z%&roﬁs &¢ts"c0mmittéd
againdﬁ indivi&uaig, which, in thg‘ey@ﬁ of' the public, constituted
the hasic é@ncepﬁ o genoqide;: The acts moﬁtionéd in the various

ijar&graphs that 1% wes proposed to devots to oultural éenaci&e would

: “/Be-more_



L/AC.25/8R. 1k
Pags 11
be more appropristely dealt with in connection with the guestion of
the protection of mincrities,
Mr. Maktos asgked that his statement should appeer in full in the

Committes's report to the Cunmission on Human Rights.

Mr. MCRCZCY (Union bf Soviet Socialiat Republics) said that
the different drafts sutmitted aimed at the suppresslon only of acts
cormitted with & vicw to national} rellgious or racial persecution,

Of the acts snumerated, those for which persecution was not the mqtive
camo under the guestion of the protectlicn of minorities and might very

"wgll be gtudied by cther organsg of ths United Nations.

i
i:g..

RZECUL  (Tshanon) pointedlguﬁ that, in gencral, the grticlés
on cultural gencelde in che texts ﬂubmitfed by the various dclegatians
ligted acts which wers net as ssrious or es shocking to thé conscience
of the world ce the acts denounced by the convention, which involved
the physical existence of a group, He thought th at the only acts on
the subject which should be included in the convention were those which
could ceuse the ccuplete and rapid disappoarance of the culture, len-
puage or religicn of & grcupﬁ Ths'other écts might ba'oovéred by‘

gpecial provisions in the Q¢IluTunu nanlunaL 1651u1at10ns or in t%u

Declaraticon on Husan Righte,

Mr. Azkoul dvew the Cormittes's attention to The difficulty the
courts woeuld heve in deturmining the wotive for an zot ‘such as those

ligted in the proposcd Texte.  While 1t was relabively casy 1o determine

the wotive Tor the magsacre OF & human group, it wag uuch harder to

)

“prove the intenticn tehilnd genocide which, for eXGMple, con81¢tud of
rorbidding & group o wee ity own lanpuggn “He th&rexore p DpOﬂed the o

followling tcxt.fér ar%iclc IT of the uonventlcn. .

"In this comvention, gemocide alss mcans acts or mﬂasures

/dlrected




;E./Acv.25/SIR'.1L‘;

Page 12
directed against o naticnal, racial or relipioue group on grounds
of mational or racisl origin or religicus belici's, which will
cauée the rapid and complets disappearance of the loniuage, cul-
ture or religlon of the group.

'Hisvproposed text had the advantage of avolding =n cnumesration of

the acts which C“natltubbd cultural penocide and o providing the courts
with a more subgtantial basis For judging the intentlon buldod the

incrininating act.

M, M(RCQCV (Unicn ﬂf,?”viet-SociaWi”t Wﬂpﬁblics) was 1ot
_  satisfiod w1tn the text. proposed by the reprosentative of Lebanon.
Ag it ﬂld ‘not contain any rritcrlon for datcrmlnlng the "rapidity ™
 "w1th which.thc language or the culture of a group disappeared, it

would, in Practice, be very hard to interpret.

‘Mr, (RDONNEAU (France) stated'that the new text was as
unacceptabls to his delegation as the draits provionsly proposed.
He suggestod that tho snthors of the various drafts should Jointly

prepare & single text for submigsion to the Committae,

The CFAIRMAN decided to sugpend the meetlng in ordpr -to give
the representatlves oF China, Lebanon, Poland the Union of qOVlet

Socialist Republics and'Venezuela an apportunity to agree on a draft.

The meeting: was suspended Tron M.DO DR tO 3230 D1,

Mr LiN’MDUbHENG \Chlna) read the Iollowing draJt whlch had
:  been accepted by the majorlty o the Sun Oormlttes.

In this convention genoeide also means any of the follgwing‘
dellberate acts commltted with the intentlon oyily destroylng the
languagc or oulture ox a nanional raclal or rellgious gvoup on

/groun&s




E/AC.25/SR.14
Page 13
grounds of national or racial origin or religious belilef:

"1) prohibiting the use or the language of the group in
daily intercourse or in schools, or prohibiting the printing
and. circulation of publications in the languege oT the‘group;

"2) destroying, or preventing fhe use of, the 1ibraries,
nugeums, schools, historical monunents, placespofrworship orv'

other cultural ingtitutions and objects of the group.'

Mr. ORDONNEAU (France) observed that the French text ghould.

read "du fait de l'origine natvionale ou raciale des meubres gylgroupe,

ou de leurs croyances religieuses.”

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) Rapporteur, proposed the iollow1ng
amendments to the draft that had been read.by the representative of
China:

1) The deletion, in the 1ntroduotory paragrapn, of the words
”follow1ng and the additlon, at the end of that paragraph, of the
words "such.as", in order thus to avoid a restrictive enumeration,.

2) The addition of the word ”religion" after the word "lahguage"
in the phrass "with the intention of destroying the lenguage or |
‘oulture‘of a...group”; | ST L

3) The addition of & third~peragraph worded‘asjfolloWs:'r”Sub~ :
jecting members of a group to such conditions as would cause them to @
renounce their language rellglon or oulbure.’

Speaking of his third proposed amen&ment Mr Azkoul S&ld that there
had. been examples in njetory of mlnorlty groups that had been subjeoted
to oonditlone unau foroed them to give. up thelr language rel:glon or
oulture although o Iormal neasures suoh 88 those enumerated in the
draft had: been taken agalnet tnem.; His intentlon in prop051ng the
addltlon of a thlr& paragraph to artlcle II was to prevent the repetltion fe

/of such




| " EB/AC.25/SR.1k
- Page 1k

. of such cases.

Referring to the third Lebanese amendment, Mr. MCROZOV (Union
-'vkof Soviét Sbcialist‘Republics) pointed out that the provisions of the
;-proposed additional paragraph wers a needless repetition of those of
.¥bthe firet two paragraphs of the dveft. It would be hard to imagine, for
‘example, that members of a group would give up thelr language for any

reason other than that they were forbidden to use it.

 Mr. LIN MOUSHENG (China) said thet the adoption of the words

4 'Wsﬁch'as“’woﬁld‘make:thé propoéed third paragraph unnecegsary.

B JMr;‘PEREZ-PEROZO'(Venszuela) supported the views of the USSR
f;::andidhiﬁése féﬁresentativeé.' The cases that the repregentative of
Lebanon had in mind would in all probability not arise, and it was

unnecessary to. devote a. separate paragraph to them.

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote meparately each of the Lebanese
anendments, v - '

The first Lebanese amendment wag adopted by four votes, with three
abgtentions.

‘ The gecond lebanese amendment was adopted by rive votes, with two
‘ abstentions. ‘

: . The third Lebanese amandment wag rejected by three votes to two,
.with two abstentions.

The CHAIRMAN then put “to the vote the amended text of article

:  I of the draft oonvention

_ Article II Was adopted by five votes to two.

The meeting rose &t G:10 i



